REPORT OF THE GORHAM TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING Burleigh Loveitt Council Chambers September 6, 2022

Chairman Pratt opened the meeting. There were 60 members of the public in attendance.

Chairman Pratt introduced The Gorham Little League Minors All-Star team, who went 5-0 in the District 6 tournament, moving on to the State tournament winning 3 games to earn the Maine State Championship title. These girls outscored their opponents 92-16 in Districts and States, earning the privilege to represent Maine in the 10U Eastern Regional Tournament in Wilkes-Barre, PA. They battled in 2 games against Rhode Island and New York, but unfortunately fell short both games. In total, Gorham finished with an 8-2 record in tournament play. They all played hard and represented Gorham with excellence. The girls representing Maine were #22 Camryn Allen, #3 Mae Blackburn, #24 Paige Charland, #27 Lauren Drenski, #2 Jacklyn Dunbar, #7 Cameron Gagnon, #9 Mia Johnson, #12 Jazmyn King, #33 Sophia Marquis, #1 Kendra poulin, #10 Mollie Towns, #16 Viannah Vercoe and #11 Riley Young.

The Gorham Little League Minors All-Star team led the Council with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call: Chairman Pratt, Councilors Shepard, Wilder Cross, Phillips, Hartwell, Hager and Kuech. Also in attendance were Town Manager Ephrem Paraschak and Town Clerk Laurie Nordfors.

Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross and VOTED to accept the Minutes of the August 2, 2022 Regular Town Council Meeting. 7 **yeas**

Open Public Communications

Jim Means, Beatrice Drive expressed his views on the recent tax assessments.

Councilor Communications

Councilor Hager noted that the Finance Committee will meet on September 19th.

Councilor Kuech reported that the Little Rams Committee met and discussed their final draft, which will be presented to the School Committee and Town Council in the coming weeks.

Councilor Wilder Cross acknowledged that the Appointments Committee has received many applications for the Robie Park Steering Committee and will be making appointments soon.

Councilor Phillips attended the GEDC workshop and reported that it was good to get together with the group and share ideas. She also announced that the Gorham Historical Society will soon be moving their archives from their building on School Street to the Barn at Cherry Hill Farm. She hopes to be open more hours to the public at the new location.

Councilor Hartwell reported that the Ordinance Committee met on August 16th and discussed recreation impact fees and the Growth Management Ordinance, which is on tonight's agenda. He pointed out that they were using new technology, which allowed the Town attorney to attend the meeting remotely and be able to participate in discussion.

Chairman Pratt addressed the current blood shortage and urged people to donate blood if they can. He also wished his daughter Maci a happy 11th birthday.

Town Manager Report

Town Manager Paraschak congratulated the Gorham Fire Department on receiving a grant to install vehicle exhaust systems in every station. He thanked the Rec, Fire, PD and PW departments for their help with the recent Glow in the Park event. He reminded citizens that the revaluation is wrapping up and that letters should be going out this week with the new assessments. If there are any concerns, please call 1-888-844-4300 to schedule an appointment to discuss the assessment.

School Committee Report

Start of School

The 2022-23 school year has gotten off to an excellent start! We brought over 500 staff back two weeks ago and last week we opened our doors to our students. It is amazing to have our schools open and operational again.

We are beginning the year with far fewer COVID restrictions but are still reporting active COVID cases on our website to assist parents in making informed choices. If a student or staff member tests positive, they need to isolate for 5 days but then can return to school with a mask for the next 5 days if symptoms are improving. We are not contact tracing and not quarantining anymore.

If we do get into an outbreak status, we will of course need to inform families at that time, and conditions could change depending on the recommendations from the Maine CDC. Our district website has a COVID page that provides up to date information as well as a Q&A for people that have questions. People can also reach out to the school nurse with questions.

Busses

Now that school has started it is important to remember that busses are on the roads! Thank you to Gorham PD for putting out some great reminders to our community during the first week of school, however those signs out for the rest of the year. Please

remember to slow down and stop for busses when their red lights are on. Let's make sure we do our part to keep the children safe!

Speaking of busses, once again, we are short on bus drivers. If you know of anyone that is interested, please point them in our direction! If you have your license, great, but if you don't, we will pay to have you trained! The starting hourly rate is \$21.59 with full benefits. We have great hours and rewarding work.

In addition, we are looking for spare drivers. You can earn \$26.00 for a spare driver, but unfortunately without benefits.

Open Houses

Our K-8 schools had their open houses last week and we had a great turnout! Parents and families came out in force to support our children across our schools. The GHS open house will be on Thursday at 6:00pm and I am sure we will have a great turnout!

Athletics

The fall athletic season has gotten off to a great start! All teams are up and running, and if you can, come on out and support our Rams! Schedules can be found on our website.

Substitutes

We are also in need of substitutes to begin the new school year. It is a great way to earn some extra money while making a positive difference in the lives of our children! Again, if interested, please go to our website, and apply today.

Staffing

Other than bus drivers and substitutes we are beginning the school year fully staffed. This is remarkable given the current workforce climate in our area, the state, or even the country. This speaks to the caliber of our school system that we can attract and retain such incredible staff each year!

Pre-K

We have a pre-k survey for parents that have been posted on our social media sites. The deadline to fill it out is September 12, so parents with pre-k age students please remember to fill this out!

We will have an update on our summer building projects and initial enrollment figures for you at the October meeting.

Our next regular meeting is on September 14, 2022, at 7:00pm in Council Chambers

Public hearing #1
On Item #2022-9-01

Public hearing to hear comment on a referendum question to amend the Gorham Town Charter as printed below: (Admin. Spon.)

Chairman Pratt opened public hearing #1. There were no comments from the public and the hearing was closed.

Proposed Order #22-99

Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross and Ordered, that the Town Council authorize a referendum for the November 8, 2022 Municipal Election to amend the Gorham Town Charter as follows:

Moved by Councilor Hartwell, seconded by Councilor Hager and VOTED to waive the reading of Order #22-99 due to length. 7 yeas

Councilor Kuech left the meeting due to illness.

ARTICLE II TOWN COUNCIL

Sec. 203 Enumeration of Powers. Without limitation of the foregoing, the Council shall have <u>the</u> power to:

204.16 Authorize and issue general obligation securities, provided that no such securities shall be issued to finance a proposed capital expenditure over \$250,000\$500,000, as adjusted for inflation in accordance with section 901, unless such proposed expenditure shall first have been approved by referendum vote pursuant to section 901;

ARTICLE IX INITIATIVE AND REFERENDUM

Sec. 901.13. Capital Expenditures Over \$250,000\$500,000. Any proposed capital expenditure over \$250,000\$500,000 except emergency ordinances as previously defined in Article II, Section 213.1, shall be submitted to a referendum vote on the proposed expenditure. The Council shall fix the time and place for such referendum. A majority of the electors present and voting at the referendum shall determine the result. Notwithstanding the above, no referendum vote shall be required for any expenditure where (A) it is fully paid for by a third party grant award or gift fully covering the expenditure or where (B) the Town's share of the expenditure does not exceed \$250,000\$500,000, as long as, in either instance, the Town Council, after a Ppublic hearing on the same, determines there will be no directly related costs accompanying such expenditure. The Council's determination on that issue shall be conclusive unless challenged by an action filed in Superior Court within thirty (30) days of such Council determination.

The \$500,000 capital expenditure threshold, as set forth in this section, shall be adjusted for inflation beginning on January 1, 2023, and on January 1 of each year thereafter. As used in this paragraph, "inflation" means the Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers New England (CPI-U, New England) compared to the previous year, or a successor index that is tied to the annual rate of inflation in the New England region.

The effective date of these amendments is November 9, 2022.

[Explanation: The purpose of the proposed amendment is to increase the dollar amount for a capital expenditure requiring a referendum vote from \$250,000 to \$500,000, and to provide for an annual adjustment of that dollar amount in accordance with the rate of inflation.]

Order #22-99 was VOTED 6 years.

Public hearing #2 On Item #2022-9-02

Public hearing to hear comment on the referendum question related to the proposed issuance of general obligation bonds and/or notes in anticipation of such bonds in a principal amount not to exceed \$20,025,956 for various school-related capital expenditures. (Admin. Spon.)

Chairman Pratt opened public hearing #2.

Jim Means, Beatrice Drive and Phil Gagnon, Gordon Farms Road spoke in opposition to the item.

The public hearing was closed

Chairman Pratt disclosed that his wife works for the School Department and asked the Council to vote on whether he should remain seated for the Item.

Moved by Councilor Wilder Cross, seconded by Councilor Phillips and VOTED to allow Chairman Pratt to remain seated for discussion and vote on the item. **5 yeas, 1 abstention (Pratt)**

Proposed

Order #22-100

Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Phillips and Ordered, that the Town Council authorize a referendum for the November 8, 2022 Municipal Election for the Town to borrow and expend up to \$20,025,956 for the following capital projects on various public schools in the Town:

Gorham High School Modular Phase I (Cafeteria, 8 classrooms, bathrooms, adult ed.) - \$8,790,917.00 Gorham High School LED Lighting - \$423,215.00 Gorham High School HVAC - \$4,299,464.00 Narragansett Elementary School Modular Expansion (Final Phase) - \$5,800,839.00 Narragansett Elementary School HVAC - \$393,921.00 Village Elementary School Floor Replacement - \$317,600.00

Total: \$20,025,956.00

Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Shepard and VOTED to amend the order as follows:

Ordered, that the Town Council authorize a referendum for the November 8, 2022 Municipal Election for the Town to borrow and expend up to \$10,523,215.00 for the following capital projects on various public schools in the Town:

Gorham High School LED Lighting - \$423,215.00 Gorham High School HVAC - \$4,300,000.00 Narragansett Elementary School Modular Expansion (Final Phase) - \$5,800,000.00

Total: \$10,523,215.00

Amendment VOTED 6 yeas

Order #22-100 VOTED as amended. 4 yeas, 2 nays (Pratt, Phillips)

Public hearing #3
On item #2022-9-03

Public hearing to hear comment on a proposal to issue a renewal Medical Use Marijuana License to Chris Terison, Terepy Relief LLC, 17 Gorham Industrial Parkway, Unit A. Property owned by Dave Cowen. (Admin. Spon.)

Chairman Pratt opened public hearing #3. There were no comments from the public and the hearing was closed.

Proposed

Order #22-101

Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Phillips and Ordered, that the Town Council issue a renewal Medical Use Marijuana License to Chris Terison, Terepy Relief LLC, 17 Gorham Industrial Parkway, Unit A. Property owned by Dave Cowen.

Order #22-101 VOTED 6 yeas

Public hearing #4 On Item #2022-9-04

Public hearing to hear comment on a proposal to issue a renewal Medical Use Marijuana License to Nicholas Wilson, Forest City Organics, LLC, 11 Gorham Industrial Parkway. Property owned by Jack McInerny. (Admin.

Spon.)

Chairman Pratt opened public hearing #4. There were no comments from the public and the hearing was closed.

Proposed

Order #22-102

Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Phillips and Ordered, that the Town Council issue a renewal Medical Use Marijuana License to Nicholas Wilson, Forest City Organics, LLC, 11 Gorham Industrial Parkway.

Property owned by Jack McInerny.

Order #22-102 VOTED 6 yeas

Public hearing #5 On Item #2022-9-05

Public hearing to hear comment on a proposal for the Town of Gorham to propose a Growth Management Ordinance. (Admin.

Spon.)

Chairman Pratt opened public hearing #4. There were no comments from the public and the hearing was closed.

Proposed Order #22-103

Moved by Councilor Hartwell, seconded by Councilor Phillips and Ordered, that the Town Council approve the following Town of Gorham Growth Management Ordinance:

Moved by Councilor Phillips, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross and VOTED to waive the reading of Order #22-103 due to length. 6 yeas

TOWN OF GORHAM

GROWTH MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE

Adopted September ___, 2022

SECTION 1. TITLE

This ordinance shall be known and cited as the "Growth Management Ordinance of the Town of Gorham, Maine" and shall be referred to herein as the "Ordinance."

SECTION 2. LEGAL AUTHORITY

This Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authority granted by 30-A M.R.S. § 4360, as may be amended, and the Town's home rule authority under Chapter VIII, Part 2, Section 1 of the Maine Constitution and 30-A M.R.S. § 3001, as may be amended.

SECTION 3. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to protect the health, safety and general welfare of the residents of the Town of Gorham by placing reasonable and appropriate limitations on residential development in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan, more specifically:

- a. To provide for the immediate housing needs of the existing residents of the Town of Gorham;
- b. To target residential development to the Growth Areas as identified in the Comprehensive Plan and help protect the Rural Areas from rapid residential growth;
- c. To ensure fairness in the allocation of building permits;
- d. To plan for continued residential population growth in the Town of Gorham and the associated impacts on municipal services including, but not limited to, education, public safety, transportation infrastructure, access to natural resources, waste disposal and health services; and
- e. To avoid circumstances in which the rapid development of new residences—potentially housing many families with school age children—would outpace the Town's capability to expand its schools and other necessary services soon enough to avoid serious school overcrowding and a significant reduction in the level and quality of other municipal services.

SECTION 4. DEFINITIONS

Terms not specifically defined in this Ordinance shall have the same meanings as in the Town of Gorham Land Use and Development Code (LUDC), and if not defined in the LUDC, shall carry their usual and customary meanings.

a. <u>Accessory dwelling unit</u>: A self-contained dwelling unit located within, attached to or detached from a single-family dwelling unit located on the same parcel of land.

- b. <u>Affordable</u>: Housing for which the occupant or occupants are paying no more than thirty percent (30%) of the household's combined gross income for housing costs, including utilities.
- c. <u>Affordable housing</u>: A decent, safe and sanitary dwelling, apartment or other living accommodation that is affordable for a household whose income does not exceed 80% of the median income for the area as defined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development under the United States Housing Act of 1937, Public Law 75-412, 50 Stat. 888, Section 8, as amended.
- d. Building permit: A permit issued by the Code Enforcement Officer pursuant to Section 1-3 of the LUDC.
- e. <u>Code Enforcement Officer</u>: The Town of Gorham Code Enforcement Officer, the Building Inspector, or an authorized agent of either.
- f. <u>Comprehensive Plan</u>: The Comprehensive Plan adopted by the Town of Gorham.
- g. <u>Common scheme of development</u>: A plan or process of development that:
 - 1) Takes place on contiguous or non-contiguous parcels or lots in the same immediate vicinity and timeframe;
 - 2) Is reviewed by the Town through:
 - A. The Town's Subdivision Review or Site Plan Review processes; or
 - B. A permitting process of a State or Federal agency; and
 - 3) Exhibits characteristics of a unified approach, method, or effect including, but not limited to:
 - A. Unified ownership, construction, management, or supervision;
 - B. Sharing or use of common equipment or labor; or
 - C. Common financing.
- h. <u>Family gift lot</u>: A lot that is not part of a subdivision and which has been created by a gift from a parent to a child (including an adopted child or stepchild) or from a child to a parent (including an adoptive parent or stepparent).
- i. <u>Gift</u>: The conveyance of property for which the grantor receives no money, property or any other consideration for the conveyance.
- j. <u>Growth permit</u>: A permit issued in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, which allows for the issuance of a building permit for the construction, creation or placement of one new dwelling unit within the Town of Gorham.
- k. <u>Subdivision</u>: The division of a tract or parcel of land into three (3) or more lots within any 5 year period, subject to the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4401, as may be amended from time to time, and which is approved by the Planning Board in accordance with Chapter 3 of the LUDC.
- I. <u>Workforce housing</u>: A dwelling unit for which the purchase or rental price is affordable to a household earning between 80 and 120% of the Area Median Income as set by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.
- m. <u>Mixed-Use Development</u>: A building or structure with a variety of complementary and integrated uses, such as, but not limited to, residential, office, manufacturing, retail, public, entertainment, and light industrial, in a compact urban form.

SECTION 5. APPLICABILITY

This Ordinance shall apply to the construction, creation, or placement of any new dwelling unit within the Town of Gorham.

SECTION 6. EXEMPTIONS

The dwelling units described below are exempt from the requirements of this Ordinance and shall not require a growth permit:

- a. The repair, replacement, reconstruction or alteration of an existing dwelling unit;
- b. A dwelling unit that is created on a family gift lot, provided that no person may obtain more than one building permit pursuant to this exemption during the time this Ordinance is in effect;
- c. A dwelling unit that is created pursuant to a contract zoning agreement that authorizes the unit to be exempt from the requirements of this Ordinance;
- d. A dwelling unit that qualifies as affordable housing, provided that the applicant satisfactorily demonstrates that the dwelling unit qualifies as such;
- e. A dwelling unit that is part of a mixed-use development that is located in a growth area as designated in the Comprehensive Plan;
- f. A dwelling unit that has been deemed exempt by action of the Town Council in accordance with Section 7(e) below;
- g. A dwelling unit within a mobile home park licensed by the Town of Gorham under the Mobile Home Park Ordinance;
- h. Up to ten (10) detached dwelling units that meet the criteria of workforce housing as defined in this Ordinance, if the applicant demonstrates compliance with this requirement; and
- i. A dwelling unit that meets the definition of an accessory dwelling unit under this Ordinance.

The Code Enforcement Officer is responsible for determining if a dwelling unit qualifies as exempt under this Section.

SECTION 7. ADMINISTRATION

- a. Commencing on January 1, 2023, the creation of each new dwelling unit in the Town of Gorham shall require one growth permit.
- b. The number of growth permits allocated annually and the process for the issuance of growth permits from this annual allocation are as set forth in this Section 7, and shall be allocated on a calendar year basis.
- c. Unless amended pursuant to Section 8 of this Ordinance, the maximum number of growth permits annually issued between January 1st and December 31st shall be 125. Any growth permits that are not issued during the calendar year shall expire and shall not be carried forward to the next year.
- d. Annual allocation of growth permits.
 - 1) During each calendar year, no more than 25 growth permits shall be issued for dwelling units located in the Rural and Rural-Manufactured Housing Districts or in any area designated as a Rural Area in the Comprehensive Plan. Of the 25 growth permits allowed under this subsection, no more than 15 growth permits shall be issued for developments proceeding through subdivision review and approval under the LUDC, and no more than 10 growth permits shall be issued for projects not requiring subdivision review and approval.

- 2) During each calendar year, no more than 100 growth permits shall be issued for dwelling units located in the remaining residential and mixed-use zoning districts in the Town of Gorham. Of the 100 growth permits allowed under this subsection, no more than 75 growth permits shall be allowed for developments proceeding through subdivision review and approval under the LUDC, and no more than 25 growth permits shall be issued for those projects not requiring subdivision review and approval.
- 3) During each calendar year, no more than five growth permits shall be issued to a common scheme of development in any area of the Town designated as a Rural Area in the Comprehensive Plan.
- 4) During each calendar year, no more than 10 growth permits shall be issued to a common scheme of development in any area of the Town designated as a Growth Area in the Comprehensive Plan.
- e. Application procedure for growth permits.
 - 1) A growth permit application shall be submitted to the Code Enforcement Officer either by mail or in person during normal business hours. Applications shall not be accepted until after the effective date of this Ordinance.
 - 2) The Code Enforcement Officer or his/her designee shall indicate on the application form the date and time the growth permit application was received and provide the applicant with a receipt. Each application shall be reviewed in the order in which it was received. Only complete applications will be accepted and reviewed for processing.
 - 3) The growth permit application shall be accompanied by (i) a nonrefundable application fee as set forth in the Town of Gorham Fee Schedule, and (ii) documentation establishing the applicant's right, title and interest to the property.
 - 4) A separate growth permit is required for each dwelling unit to be created, although multiple growth permits may be requested on a single application.
- f. Issuance procedure for growth permits from the annual allocation.
 - 1) Growth permits shall be issued on a first-come, first-served basis according to the dates and times the applications are accepted as complete by the Code Enforcement Officer under Section 7(e)(2) of this Ordinance.
 - 2) If all available growth permits are issued during a calendar year, no more growth permits may be issued and no more applications may be accepted until such time as additional permits become available.
 - 3) Within six months of the issuance of a growth permit, the applicant shall submit a complete building permit application and associated documentation to the Code Enforcement Officer for review and approval, and the construction of the project shall commence within nine months of issuance of the growth permit. Upon the expiration of either of the deadlines set forth in this subsection, the Code Enforcement Officer shall notify the applicant in writing that the growth permit is null and void and shall issue that growth permit to the next qualified applicant as identified under Section 7(e)(1). Growth permits that expire under this subsection shall be available for reissue during the same calendar year in which it expired.
 - 4) The Code Enforcement Officer shall not issue a building permit for a dwelling unit unless the applicant has a valid growth permit or is exempt from this requirement under Section 6 of this Ordinance.
- g. Town Council exemptions.
 - 1) A property owner or his/her representative may request that the Town Council exempt from the requirements of this Ordinance a dwelling unit(s) that meets the following criteria:
 - A. The dwelling unit(s) is located within a Growth Area of the Town, as designated by the Comprehensive Plan; and

- B. The dwelling unit(s) is part of a mixed-use development or multifamily housing.
- 2) Exemptions under this subsection shall require the affirmative vote of at least two thirds of the Town Council members present and voting, but in no event less than four votes.
- h. Transferability. Growth permits are issued only for the specific lot identified in the growth permit application. A growth permit may be transferred to a new owner of the lot, provided notice of the transfer of ownership is given in writing to the Code Enforcement Officer before the issuance of a building permit. Transfer of ownership does not change the date of issuance for an approved growth permit. An application for a growth permit is not transferable.
- i. Expiration. A growth permit shall expire with the building permit issued by the Code Enforcement Officer for that dwelling unit.

SECTION 8. PERIODIC REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF ORDINANCE

The Town Council shall conduct a review of this Ordinance at least every two years to determine if it remains consistent with the Town's ability to absorb growth and to achieve the priorities outlined within the Comprehensive Plan. The Town Council shall determine if the number of growth permits available under Section 7 of this Ordinance is required to be adjusted by amendment of the Ordinance in order to comply with applicable law. During its review, the Council shall set the number of growth permits available under Section 7(c) of this Ordinance at 105% or more of the mean number of growth permits issued during the 10 years immediately prior to the year in which the number is calculated, in accordance with 30-A M.R.S. § 4360(3)(B), as may be amended from time to time. The Town Council may seek assistance or advice from the Planning Board in connection with such review. This section does not limit the Council's authority to review and/or amend the Ordinance at any other time, provided such amendment complies will all applicable laws.

SECTION 9. VIOLATION, PENALTIES AND ENFORCEMENT

Any person or entity who (1) constructs, creates or places a dwelling unit within the Town of Gorham without a growth permit as required by this Ordinance, or (2) owns or occupies a dwelling unit constructed, created or placed within the Town of Gorham without a growth permit as required by this Ordinance, commits a violation of this Ordinance and is subject to the fines, penalties and remedies provided in 30-A M.R.S. § 4452. Each day a violation continues to exist after notice of the violation constitutes a separate violation. This Ordinance shall be enforced by the Code Enforcement Officer in the manner provided for enforcement of land use violations under Section 1-3(B) and (C) of the LUDC.

SECTION 10. APPEALS

Any decision made by the Code Enforcement Officer or Town Council under the provisions of this Ordinance may be appealed to the Board of Appeals within 30 days of issuance, in accordance with the appeals procedure established in Chapter 1, Section 1-4(D) of the LUDC, as may be amended from time to time. The Board of Appeals shall conduct a de novo review of any appeal filed under this Section 10.

SECTION 11. REPORTING

The Code Enforcement Officer shall maintain a database of all growth permits issued under this Ordinance and all exemptions granted, which shall be made accessible to the public on file at the Town Office and on the Town's website. The database shall include the following information:

- a. Owner name;
- b. Assessing tax map and lot number;
- c. Building number (as input in the assessing database);
- d. Permit or exemption number;
- e. Number of bedrooms;
- f. Number of residential dwelling units;

- g. Date of issuance of the growth permit or exemption;
- h. Date of issuance of the building permit; and
- i. Date of issuance of the certificate of occupancy.

SECTION 12. EFFECT ON OTHER REGULATIONS

This Ordinance shall not repeal, annul, or otherwise impair or remove the necessity of compliance with any federal, state or other local laws or ordinances. Where this Ordinance imposes a greater restriction upon the use of land, buildings or structures than another applicable provision of law, the provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail.

SECTION 13. SEVERABILITY

If any section, clause, or provision of this Ordinance is declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, said declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance as a whole or any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid.

SECTION 14. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective on January 1, 2023.

Moved by Councilor Pratt, seconded by Councilor Phillips and VOTED to amend the order as follows:

Section 7, ADMINISTRATION, "C" to say: c. the maximum number of growth permits annually issued between January 1st and December 31st shall be 110. **5 yeas, 1 nay (Hartwell)**

Moved by Councilor Hartwell, seconded by Councilor Phillips and VOTED to amend the order as follows:

Section 6, EXEMPTIONS, "F" to say: f. a dwelling unit that has been deemed exempt by action of the Town Council in accordance with Section 7 (g) below

Section 4, DEFINITIONS, "H" to say: h. Family gift lot: A lot which has been created by a gift from a person related to the donor of an interest in the property. "Person related to the donor" means a spouse, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, child or grandchild related by blood, marriage or adoption. A gift under this paragraph cannot be given for consideration that is more than ½ the assessed value of the real estate. **6 yeas**

Moved by Councilor Phillips, seconded by Councilor Hager and VOTED to add a fee schedule and set the fee at \$1000.00. **6 yeas**

Moved by Councilor Hartwell, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross and VOTED to allocate the fees to go to the TDR account. **5 yeas, 1 nay (Pratt)**

Order #22-103 VOTED as amended 6 yeas

Public hearing #6 On Item #2022-9-06

Public hearing to hear comment on a proposal to amend the Zoning Map to change the area in the vicinity of South Street to Brackett Road from Rural and Suburban Residential District to the Urban Expansion District and the area in the vicinity of New Portland Road and Lowell Road from the Rural District to the Suburban Residential District. (Admin. Spon.)

Chairman Pratt opened public hearing #6.

Jim Means, Beatrice Drive; Elizabeth Jamieson, Hart's Way; Kathleen Ashley, Day Road; Donna Cassidy, Day Road; Judy O'Malley, Shirley Lane; Roger Brown, Day Road; Karen Brown, Day Road; and Richard Foley, Newton Drive all spoke in opposition of the item.

Lindsay Hastings, Brackett Road; Paul Gore, Alberta Way and John Chamberlain spoke in favor of the Item.

The public hearing was closed.

Proposed Order #22-104

Moved by Councilor Shepard, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross and Ordered, that the Town Council amend the Zoning Map to change the area in the vicinity of South Street to Brackett Road from Rural and Suburban Residential District to the Urban Expansion District and the area in the vicinity of New Portland Road and Lowell Road form the Rural District to the Suburban Residential District.

Councilor Hager disclosed that he lives in the area and asked the Council to vote on whether he should remain seated for the Item.

Moved by Chairman Pratt, seconded by Councilor Shepard and VOTED to allow Councilor Hager to remain seated for discussion and vote on the item. **5 yeas, 1 abstention (Hager)**

Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross and VOTED to table Item #2022 09-06 until next month. 5 yeas, 1 nay (Shepard)

The Council took a 5 minute recess.

Public hearing #7 On Item #2022-9-07

Public hearing to hear comment on a proposed zoning amendment to the Narragansett Mixed Use District in the Land Use Development Code. (Admin Spon.)

Chairman Pratt opened public hearing #7. There were no comments from the public and the hearing was closed.

Proposed Order #22-105

Moved by Councilor Shepard, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross and Ordered, that the Town Council amend the Land Use Development Code as follows:

SECTION 1-16 NARRAGANSETT MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

B. PERMITTED USES

- 1) Commercial Uses
 - t. Office of a contractor or tradesman

Order #22-105 was VOTED 6 yeas

Item #2022-9-08

Action regarding the November 8, 2022 Annual Municipal Election. (Admin. Spon.)

Proposed Order #22-106

Moved by Councilor Phillips, seconded by Councilor Hager and Ordered, that the Town Council authorize the Town Clerk to issue the warrant for the November 8, 2022 Annual Municipal Election; and

Be It Further Ordered, that the polls be open from 7:00am until 8:00pm; and

Be It Further Ordered, that the Town Council appoints the following persons for the designated voting districts and if any of the following should fail to serve, the Town Council hereby authorizes the Town Clerk to appoint substitutes:

District 1-1 – Susan Emerson, Warden and Laurel Smith, Ward Clerk District 1-2 – Katherine Corbett, Warden and Marie Plummer, Ward Clerk

District 2 – Martha Towle, Warden and Nancy Kenty and Heidi Pratt, Ward Clerk

Central – Paula Nystrom, Warden and Letitia Genest, Ward Clerk

Be It Further Ordered, that the Registrar of Voters be in session during the hours of 8:00am and 4:00pm on Tuesday, November 1, 2022 and Wednesday, November 2, 2022; between the hours of 8:00am and 7:00pm on Thursday November 3, 2022 between the hours of 8:00am and 1:00pm on Friday November 4, 2022 and between the hours of 8:00am and 4:00pm on Monday November 7, 2022, and

Be it Further Ordered, that the Town Clerk be authorized to process absentee ballots on Wednesday, November 2nd through Tuesday, November 8th starting at 10:00am each day.

Item #2022-9-09 Action to consider approving applications from the Senior Property

Tax Relief Program. (Admin. Spon.)

Proposed

Order #22-107 Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Shepard and

Ordered, that the Town Council approve all qualifying applications from the Senior Property Tax Relief Program as reviewed and

recommended by staff.

Order #22-107 was VOTED 6 yeas

Item #2022-9-10 Action to consider approving the transfer of funds seized in a criminal

case. (Admin. Spon.)

Proposed

Order #22-108 Moved by Councilor Hager, seconded by Councilor Shepard and

Ordered, that the Town Council approve the transfer of \$10,210.00 to the Town of Gorham pursuant to Title 15 M.R.S.A, §15824(3) and §5826(6) seized in a criminal case (Docket No. CR-20-5276) and Be It Further Ordered the Town Manager is authorized to sign the approval

form on behalf of the Town of Gorham.

Order #22-108 was VOTED 6 yeas

Item #2022-9-11 Action to consider authorizing a private way on a public easement on

a discontinued section of Libby Avenue constructed to the Town's

Rural Access Street Standard. (Councilor Pratt Spon.)

Proposed

Order #22-109 Moved by Councilor Shepard, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross

and Ordered, that the Town Council authorizes the construction of a private way over the public easement of the discontinued section of Libby Avenue providing that the property owner provides through the Planning Board review process all concerns with abuting property access are met, public easement access is maintained, and the property owner provides for a public works turn around that meets

the Town's public road standard.

Order #22-109 was VOTED 4 yeas, 2 nays (Hartwell, Phillips)

Item #2022-9-12

Action to consider authorizing a referendum question asking the voters to form a Charter Commission for the purpose of revising the Gorham Town Charter. (Councilor Hartwell Spon.)

Proposed Order #22-110

Moved by Councilor Hartwell, Seconded by Councilor Shepard and Ordered, that the Town Council authorizes a referendum question for the November 8, 2022 election asking voters if they approve establishing a Charter Commission for the purpose of revising the Gorham Town Charter pursuant to M.R.S.A. 30-A Chapter III and;

Be It Further Ordered, that the Town Council schedules a public

hearing

on October 4, 2022.

Order #22-110 was VOTED 1 yea, 5 nays (Hager, Wilder Cross, Pratt, Phillips, and Shepard)

Item fails

Item #2022-9-13 Action to consider establishing a workshop to discuss road

discontinuance and public easements. (Councilor Hartwell Spon.)

Proposed

Order #22-111 Moved by Councilor Phillips, seconded by Councilor Wilder Cross and

Ordered, that the Town Council sets September 20, 2022 as a workshop date to discuss road discontinuance and public easements.

Order #22-111 was VOTED 6 yeas

Moved by Councilor Phillips, seconded by Councilor Shepard and VOTED to adjourn. 6 yeas

Time of Adjournment: 9:45pm

A True Record of Meeting

09-06-2022

Laurie K-Mraf

Laurie Nordfors, Town Clerk 09-07-2022